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Strategic Report

Our purpose is underpinned by
three core values: Responsibility of
Stewardship, Pursuit of Excellence
and Value of Partnership.

REALISING PEOPLE’S PURPOSE
As responsible stewards of capital, we are committed
to helping others achieve what matters most to them.

Responsibility
of Stewardship

Pursuit of
Excellence

Value of
Partnership

We take care of all that we are
entrusted to protect and safeguard.
Client relationships and assets,
employees’ careers and their
wellbeing are at the heart of this.

We strive to be outstanding in all
that we do.

We believe in an alignment of
purpose with our clients and we
work in partnership with them
towards common objectives.

We have a responsibility as a
business to help achieve high social
and environmental standards within
our wider community.

b

We constantly challenge ourselves
to learn, so we can improve what we
do and adapt to the changing needs
of our clients and staff.

We share ownership of
our company and we have
a responsibility to each other
and to our society.
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CEO STATEMENT

that we set ourselves. However, we
need to remain focused on the changing
needs of our clients and evolve our
proposition accordingly.
Given the ongoing challenges posed by
the pandemic, a lot of credit has to go
to all my colleagues – whether it is our
investment team, led by Bill Dinning,
who are at the centre of our excellent
investment returns, the teams who build
upon this and transpose it into strong
performance and first class service for
our clients, and the support teams who
make it all possible.

A year of progress
and growth
2021 was another strong year for
Waverton. This is particularly clear
when looking at the key metrics for our
business – investment performance,
client satisfaction, employee engagement,
net new assets, revenue growth
and profitability.

The four key channels in which we
operate all performed well and made
their own contributions to the overall
success of the business in 2021.
In 2021, the Private Clients team, led by
Rupert Elwes, saw a real step-change
in growth thanks to the acquisition of
the wealth management and financial
planning company Cornerstone Asset
Management. This has since been
rebranded to Waverton Wealth.

The achievements of the past 12 months
were a consequence of our five
year strategy for growth which the
Management Committee and the Board
set in 2020. This strategy builds upon
our strengths and seeks to future-proof
our business for the ever-changing world
in which we live. I am pleased to report
that we are ahead of all of the milestones

This development gives us a great
opportunity to build out our presence
in Scotland and enhance our integrated

2021 saw strong growth, both in net new assets and investment returns
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Market Growth (£m)
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This wealth proposition particularly
resonates well with entrepreneurs.
Our continued campaign to provide an
effective ‘ecosystem’ to those wishing to
expand their business or plan their exit
has enabled Waverton to add real value
amongst this cohort of business owners.

Our profits have leapt by 46%
this year, a clear vindication of
our growth strategy.
An important initiative we undertook and
completed in 2021 was a client satisfaction
survey, the first since 2016. I have always
felt passionate about getting close to
clients – understanding their values and
how we can really help them achieve
their goals. Putting in place a robust and
measurable way to assess how we are
meeting their needs was therefore a top
priority in our strategy.
Overall, the results were tremendous.
Clients awarded us an excellent NPS rating
of 70 (compared to the industry average of
around 40). While we are rightly proud of
our achievements, we have sought to learn
from, and act upon, all the feedback that
we received, and to thank all the clients that
took part. As a direct result of this survey,
we are increasing our communication
with clients about our ESG-integrated
investment approach, broadening our
conversations with clients beyond their
investment portfolio to include wealth
planning, and continuing to invest in our
digital services due to the popularity of our
client portal.

2000
NNA

investment approach from our London
office. Our goal is to be able to deliver
a truly differentiated service to our
clients – fully integrated wealth planning
and investment management, allowing
our clients to be confident that we
understand the purpose of their wealth
and then invest accordingly to achieve
their objectives.

Nov’21

Dec’21
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The fourth channel is our Institutional
Solutions business, led by Charles Scott
Plummer. During 2021 his team started to
take the ‘whole of Waverton’ investment
offering to the wholesale and institutional
marketplace. This was an important
strategic pivot for our business where
previously the focus had been more
narrowly focussed on distributing single
strategies to discretionary managers.

ar y

ve ESG is impor t
Belie their inves tmen ant
ts
to

inve

Engage with
co
s t m e n t m me nt

The growth in our Adviser Solutions
channel has been extremely impressive
throughout 2021. The team, led by John
Bellamy, has grown significantly, and the
number of advisers and platforms we now
work with means Waverton is firmly on
the map when it comes to outsourcing
investment solutions. Our MPS service,
which is predominantly distributed
via this channel and held over £1bn by
December 2021, has delivered consistent
top quartile performance for 10 years now,
which is testament to the firm’s excellent
investment credentials (see page 9).

Client survey
results

Proactive
Communication

Main point
of contact

NPS score

70

Value for
money

Investment
performance

Interes t in
Wealth Planning

The Charities team, led by James Pike,
had another strong year of inflows
and investment performance, driving
total AUM for Charity clients across all
channels to reach a significant milestone
of £1.1bn at year-end. The arrival of new
colleagues has helped increase the team’s
investment expertise and ensure we
have capacity for future growth whilst
maintaining the highest level of client
service. The continued quality and breadth
of our offering was recognised by winning
the UK Charity team category at the 2021
European WealthBriefing Awards for the
third time.

Access to digital
client por tal

Centre
An objective, empirical
score of their
satisfaction and is a
measure of how likely
clients are to refer
business to Waverton.
NPS = Net Promoter
Score, a well recognised
market research metric

Middle ring
This is what matters
most to our clients in
terms of our service
– the areas clients
see as driving their
satisfaction scores

Outer ring
These are the areas or
topics our clients are
interested in and want
more of from Waverton

Real progress has also been made raising
the profile of our high calibre teams in
fixed income, alternatives and multi-asset,
not to mention our equity team, who
are now running over £700 million in
global mandates.
As discussed in the 2020 Annual Report,
we have been focusing on how we can
build on the culture of Waverton as
a business with a view to defining and
communicating our purpose and values and
3
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CEO STATEMENT continued

making them meaningful and relevant to
our stakeholders. We took time to engage
fully across the business, ensuring that we
settled on a message that was authentic
and could readily be implemented across
the firm. Our purpose statement and
three values are now evident in our online
presence, client materials and are reflected
in employee performance objectives.
This leads me to give an update on our
approach to Sustainability, which is an
exciting topic where I feel we have made
real progress. Our investment approach
has taken ESG factors into account
for some time. We all believe in the
importance of ESG being integrated, rather
than bolted on, and it seems the wider
narrative around ESG is finally catching
up. To quote our late colleague Andrew
Denham-Davis, “We believe in green
roots, not just green branches.”
The appointment of a Corporate
Sustainability Manager and the creation
of the Sustainability Committee which
reports directly to the Board, means

Providing a first class service
to our clients is, and will always
be, a key mission for everyone
at Waverton.

this area has real momentum which is
percolating throughout the firm. In 2021,
we launched an ESG training programme
provided by the PRI, to which we are a
signatory and in 2022 we will be making
our Stewardship Code submission.
As the firm grows and expands, I believe
Waverton can add real value to clients
and advisers by having state-of-the-art
operations. We will always place great
value on delivering a ‘high-touch’ personal
service, but this can be complemented
by a ‘high-tech’ one too. After a thorough
review and procurement process, we
decided to partner with SEI, a marketleading provider of outsourced operations
to the wealth management industry and
in 2021 we started the journey to fully
outsource our Back Office.
As well as looking after our clients, we
also endeavour to look after our own
people, who are our most important asset.
During 2021, against the backdrop of the
pandemic, we continued to prioritise their
wellbeing. We conducted an independent
employee survey which provided a great
deal of insight to help us create the right
working environment, protect their work/
life balance and work to keep everyone
together – even when we are not all in the
same place.
The findings have already been the basis for
a number of changes, and I look forward
to repeating the exercise in 2022, so we
can assess the progress we are making.
My thanks to everyone who took part –
your views really matter to me.
As CEO, I am also focused on the wider
group strategy and how we can work at
our best together. The acquisition and
integration of Waverton Wealth has been
smooth and there are opportunities for
us to derive greater benefits as we join
forces further.

4

Growth across
all channels
Private clients

16%

£5.5bn

(2020: £4.8bn)

Charities team

25%

£0.8bn
(2020: £0.6bn)

Adviser Solutions

74%

£1.8bn
(2020: £1.0bn)

Institutional clients

£0.5bn

(2020: £0.4bn)

27%
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Timothy James & Partners (TJP) remains
a separate financial advice business, but
during 2021 we collaborated to establish
greater synergies. Waverton now manages
investment models for the clients of TJP,
and senior management share initiatives
such as our approach to Sustainability,
as well as best practice in areas such as
Marketing and HR.

Looking forward to the next
year we expect to make a
real difference as we introduce
the idea of combined wealth
planning and investment
management to our existing
and prospective private clients.
Going forward our vision is to build on
our successes and develop our abilities to
provide a seamless and meaningful wealth
planning and investment management
offering that adds real value for both
existing and new clients. As part of our
drive towards this proposition, we have
hired a very experienced financial planner
to lead our core high-net-worth team in
London and we shall also be expanding our
investment capabilities in Scotland.
Looking forward to the next year we
expect to make a real difference as we
introduce the idea of combined wealth
planning and investment management to
our clients. We intend to accelerate our
organic growth – the recent success of
which can be seen by our net new assets –
and to develop our delivery of the Whole
of Waverton approach across all our
client groups.

Progressing with these initiatives will
improve our ability to provide great results
for our clients and therefore will increase
the underlying value of our business.
Thankfully, in the UK at least, it seems
that Covid is now in the rear-view
mirror, but the tragic events in Ukraine
are a stark reminder of the need for
constant vigilance to meet new challenges.
We believe that our active, global and
direct style of investing is nimble and well
placed to react to the current investment
outlook, and that our wealth planning and
portfolio management teams are well
positioned to work together with our
clients to understand and achieve their
goals and purpose.
Finally, I would like to extend my sincere
thanks to my colleagues, who have worked
tirelessly under challenging conditions
to help make our progress possible.
Together we will strive to build on the
achievements of 2021 to ensure continued
success in the years to come.

Nick Tucker
Chief Executive Officer

It was with great sadness that
we mourned the passing of our
dear friend and colleague David
Gibbs who died in December
2021. David was a central part of
Waverton’s DNA and had been a
role model for younger colleagues
since he joined the firm in 2005
following a distinguished career at
Salomon Brothers and Citigroup.
His deep knowledge and
experience of bond markets
was invaluable to the firm, which
had hitherto been largely an
equity-orientated investment
house. David wore his undoubted
technical knowledge lightly and had
a knack of rendering what many
considered a somewhat arcane
corner of finance both interesting
and rewarding. His ability to see
the ‘big picture’ and take a longterm view stood portfolios in good
stead throughout his period here.
Although David moved away from
full-time portfolio management
in 2018, the clamour for him to
keep a desk at Waverton (which
emanated from both clients and
staff) was one factor which led to
his appointment as Vice-Chairman
in 2021.

A critical part of our growth relates to
the value of our brand, the profile and
reputation of the business, and the role
it plays in attracting both clients and new
colleagues. Similarly, we are improving the
scalability of our operational infrastructure
whilst also focusing on incremental
improvements to ensure we continue
to meet the demands and needs of
our clients.
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BUSINESS STRATEGY
AND BUSINESS MODEL

Business strategy
Waverton has a clear strategy to support growth which is centred on
three core areas. 2021 was a year in which all of these gained real traction
and the financial results reported for the year underpin the rationale for
this approach.
− attract new clients from niche profiles such as US clients, entrepreneurs

Grow direct-to-client approach

− promote integrated wealth and investment proposition
− build regional presence

− position ‘Whole of Waverton’ to expand relationships

Develop strategic partnerships

− become partner of choice for advisers and networks
− provide market-leading performance and service

− strengthen operational infrastructure

Create scalable business model

− build brand and reputation for excellence and service
− Promote scalable investment solutions eg MPS, Funds

Business model
With the strong investment engine at its core, the business model is
designed to build and deliver value in four key areas which in turn deliver
outcomes to support the strategy.

pa

e
r tn

r s h ip

s

Fund

sa

− Invest in technology
− Attract and retain talent
− Develop a competitive proposition
n

d
li o s

Client

r tfo

sa

po

− D
 eliver consistent
investment outperformance
− Develop our range of solutions
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r at

− Preserve and grow clients’ capital
− Develop and support employees
− Create value for shareholders
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Create value for stakeholders
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Maximise distribution
− F ocus on four key channels for growth
− Build networks and partnerships
− Create ecosystems to
increase revenue
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

AUM

NNA

Revenue

Profit

Profit margin

Employee satisfaction score

£8.6bn £953m £50.3m
£12m

23.8%

92%

2021 Client Survey results

Net Promoter Score 70

Awards and ratings

Paris Jordan wins ‘Fund Selector
of the Year’ December 2021

Waverton retains five-star rating
at the Financial Adviser Service
Awards 2021 November 2021

Waverton wins two Adviser
Choice Awards July 2021

Why Invest? wins ‘Best Podcast
of the Year’ at the 2021
Citywealth Brand Management &
Reputation Awards June 2021

Waverton wins ‘UK Charity
Team’ category at the 2021
WealthBriefing European
Awards May 2021

Refinitiv Lipper Fund Awards
Winner Best Sterling Bond Fund
March 2021
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CIO REPORT

The global investment
environment
2021 ended up having more resemblance
to 2020 than most of us would have
wanted with the pandemic constantly
in the background and sometimes in
the foreground. Fortunately, from an
investment perspective, 2021 did look
different from 2020. The US stock
market did well with some of the large
technology names again leading the way.
But there were also big gains for energy
companies, and some financials too.
Some of this reflected the rally in energy
prices and the rise in interest rates.
But it also meant that portfolios needed
to have some diversity within them.
Tilted overly toward growth or value
for example did not work as well as the
former in particular had done in 2020.
In 2021 we were able to navigate the
swings in leadership between value
stocks and growth stocks and our
Stock Selection Committee, chaired
by Head of Equities Jennifer Fisher,
gave good guidance all year. The Global
Recommended Portfolio outperformed
the World Index in 2021.

8

Corporate profits recovered very
strongly in 2021 (+48% at the global
level) which meant that valuations on
global equities ended the year lower
than they were at the beginning of it.
Expectations for 2022 suggest a return
to a more normal 6-7% increase in
profits in most markets. This may lead
to another year where some diversity
in portfolios will make sense and where
picking the best-in-class companies in
different industries and markets will be
even more important.
This is also likely given the policy
backdrop is changing. Monetary policy
is shifting as the Bank of England first
raised interest rates in December 2021
and the Federal Reserve did the same
in March 2022. Both central banks have
ended Quantitative Easing programmes.
The Bank of England wants to begin to
unwind some of their bond holdings, so
called Quantitative Tightening. This shift
in monetary policy on both sides of
the Atlantic has the potential to be a
challenge to investors as the year unfolds.
Tax increases are also coming this year,
partly to pay for the fiscal largesse
of the last two years. Whether that
dents consumer spending significantly
will be another potential challenge this
year. How quickly monetary policy will
tighten is dependent on many things
but one is the outlook for inflation.
Headline inflation rates hit 7.0% in the
US, the highest level since 1982, and hit
7.5% at the end of the year in the UK,
the highest level since 1991.
The tragic events in Ukraine since the
Russian invasion began on 24 February
are creating a humanitarian disaster.
They have also had significant impacts on
commodity markets as both countries
are significant producers of a wide
range of commodities including food
and energy. This has further raised
already elevated inflation levels in the
western world.

The market is still giving policymakers
the benefit of the doubt and agreeing
with them that these headline inflation
rates will fall in coming months. This is
reflected in the ongoing low level of
bond yields relative to those inflation
readings and by longer-term market
expectations for inflation which are also
much lower than the current headline
rate. If the market is correct, then one
of the benefits of that will be an inflating
away of the real value of a lot of the debt
issued by governments to support the
economy during the pandemic.
For the bond markets, 2021 was a
difficult year. The All-Gilt index returned
-5.3% with all the damage being done
in the first quarter when expectations
for the vaccine programme to generate
strong growth were at their height.
2022 began with losses in bond markets
in January. Fortunately, the active
management of our bond funds, led
by Head of Fixed Income Jeff Keen,
managed to mitigate some of those
losses but unfortunately not all of them.
We continue to have significant exposure
to Alternatives in portfolios. Investing in
such things as property, infrastructure,
commodities and Absolute Return
strategies are an important provider
of return. Many of these investments
have some direct or indirect inflation
linkage. Several also provide some
diversification benefit.

This may lead to another
year where some diversity
in portfolios will make sense
and where picking the bestin-class companies in different
industries and markets will be
even more important.
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If we have another year of rising interest
rates and consequently disappointing
returns in fixed income we expect to see
more focus on Alternatives by a wide
range of investors. With our Real Assets
and our Absolute Return strategies
we feel we are well positioned to take
advantage of such focus.

As we navigate the ever-changing
market environment we continue to
find good investment ideas in companies
fitting four key attributes: sustainable
competitive advantage, opportunity
to grow future free cash flow, value
enhancing management strategy and
attractive valuations in relation to growth
opportunities and risks.

William Dinning
Chief Investment Officer

Performance tables
The following tables show the returns over different time periods for private clients
(figure 1) and the Managed Portfolio Service (figure 2) across the various risk profiles.
We have achieved first quartile returns for all mandates over all time periods when
compared to a group of our peers.

Figure 1
Q4 2021
Return

Quartile

Private Clients Defensive GBP

3.3

Private Clients Cautious GBP

3.8

Private Clients Balanced GBP
Private Clients Growth GBP
Private Clients Equity GBP

5.8

1 Year

3 Years

Return

Quartile

1st

8.5

1st

10.0

4.4

1st

4.5

1st
1st

5 Years

10 Years

Return

Quartile

Return

Quartile

Return

Quartile

1st

19.0

1st

26.6

1st

67.1

1st

1st

28.5

1st

35.4

1st

89.0

1st

12.0

1st

36.3

1st

45.2

1st

115.4

1st

13.1

1st

43.2

1st

53.0

1st

132.5

1st

17.9

1st

55.4

1st

67.2

1st

182.8

1st

ARC PCI Balanced up to 3 years

Figure 2
Q4 2021
MPS model

Return

Quartile

MPS Defensive GBP

2.2

MPS Cautious GBP

2.9

MPS Balanced GBP
MPS Growth GBP

1 Year

3 Years

Return

Quartile

1st

8.7

1st

11.0

3.7

1st

4.3

1st

5 Years

10 Years

Return

Quartile

Return

Quartile

Return

Quartile

1st

29.5

1st

33.3

1st

36.8

1st

41.6

1st

78.7

1st

1st

101.4

1st

13.8

1st

46.3

1st

16.1

1st

53.7

1st

52.2

1st

130.0

1st

61.0

1st

155.7

1st

Risk warning: Past performance is no guarantee of future results and the value and income from such investments and their strategies may fall as well as rise.
You may not get back your initial investment. Capital security is not guaranteed.
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MARKET REVIEW

Key trends that present
challenges and opportunities

Technology

Clients

The role of technology in the evolution
of the wealth and investment
management industry continues to
increase, as both companies invest in
digital transformation and clients come
to expect enhanced digital services and
experiences. Waverton is focused on
how technology can be leveraged to
improve our efficiency and differentiation
in the market.

As more younger clients come on to the
radar of wealth management firms, they
bring with them different expectations
of the digital experience, the approach
to responsible investment and the range
of services such as wealth planning
and investing in digital assets such as
crypto currencies. To remain relevant
and competitive, we need to evolve
our proposition and services to meet
their needs.

Waverton is focused on how
technology can be leveraged
to improve our efficiency and
differentiation in the market.

Addressing the wider requirements
of entrepreneurs is an initiative that is
gathering real momentum as Waverton
is able to leverage its wider network to
support those business-owner clients
who value the advisory network we
can introduce.

Addressing the wider
requirements of entrepreneurs
is an initiative that is
gathering real momentum as
Waverton is able to leverage
the wider network.

The threat of cyber crime remains
prevalent and Waverton has a robust
strategy to ensure our systems are
resilient and our people are vigilant
to identify and mitigate the risk of
cybercrime affecting our business and
our clients.
Established fintechs are increasingly
pushing into wealth management,
becoming both competitors and partners
of incumbents, so present both a threat
and an opportunity. Waverton
monitors the market to assess where
external strategic partners can add value
to the business and our stakeholders.

10

Articulating the role of ESG in our
investment process is central to our
proposition and we are developing
our reporting to reflect how we
consider ESG factors in the investment
decisions we take and in our
portfolio construction.
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Waverton places the needs
and rights of their clients at
the heart of its culture
and operations so is wellplaced to accommodate
these new regulations.

To maintain a competitive
edge, firms like Waverton must
deliver a truly differentiated
client service with increase
personalisation and engagement
with loyal clients.

Regulation

Competition and consolidation

The regulatory regime in the UK has
continued to strengthen the protections
for investors – something we applaud.
We anticipate there will be continued
focus from the regulators on the way
firms are governed and in particular,
their duty to consumers. The FCA’s new
Consumer Duty is likely to have the
biggest impact on firms over the next
few years.

Competition in the wealth management
industry remains intense and the volume
of M&A activity continues as firms try to
achieve scale to offset margin pressure.
To maintain a competitive edge, firms
like Waverton must deliver a truly
differentiated client service with increase
personalisation and engagement with
loyal clients.

Waverton places the needs and rights
of their clients at the heart of its culture
and operations so is well-placed to
accommodate this new regulation.
Reporting on the governance and
controls that relate to our business
model is a key part of presenting a
transparent and authentic business, and
this aligns with the values of the firm.

11
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The adviser channel were particularly
successful with over £600m flowing
into our Managed Portfolio Service
(MPS), The Private Client team
recorded a positive inflow of £166m,
the Charities team £84m and the
Institutional team £60m.

Demonstrating financial
rigour and results
2021 was a year of growth for
Waverton, based upon a significant
increase in new business generated
during the year as well as positive returns
to our clients due to a rise in markets
and our investment performance as
noted in Bill Dinning’s report. The prior
accounting period was 15 months
however in this report we have
stated the calendar 2020 numbers for
comparative purposes. A table showing
the full 15 month period, as per the
prior financial statements, is included
below alongside the calendar 2020 and
2021 results.
During the year the key metric of Assets
Under Management (AUM) increased
from £6,866m to £8,649m, an increase
of £1,783m or 26%. The majority of this
growth was new business (NNA) which
contributed £953m (2020: £229m) and
represents a £312m or 49% increase on
budget. All four divisions contributed
to the positive NNA during the year.

The performance impact during
2021 was also material with further
AUM growth of £829m over the year
(2020: £451m). The majority of this was
generated in the latter part of the year.
Waverton ended the 2020 year with
record AUM and, after a relatively small
fall in the first two months of 2021,
continued to increase. Again, Waverton
finished the year with record high AUM.
Revenue for the 12 months was £50.3m
(2020: £42.9m) which is reflective of the
growth in AUM in comparison to the
prior period. 95% of revenue is assetbased fees (2020: 95%), the increase on
the prior year is driven by low interest
rates and clients moving away from
a management fee and commission
charging model to a pure management
fee. The increase in revenue (19%)
during the period lagged the increase
in AUM as a large part of the growth in
financial markets and NNA generation
occurred in the latter part of the year.
Working practices continued to be
affected by the Covid pandemic with
the year starting and ending in lockdown
and various items of expenditure such as
travel and entertainment largely reduced.

Comparison figures for reporting periods
2021

2020

15 months

Revenue

£50.3m

£42.9m

£53.3m

Total expenses

£38.1m

£34.3m

£42.7m

Profit before tax and bonus

£16.3m

£10.6m

£13.8m

Profit before tax

£12.0m

£8.2m

£10.2m

12

Assets under management

£8.6bn

(2020: £6.9bn)

New business

£953m

(2020: £112m)

Revenue

£50.3m

(2020: £42.4m)

Profit margin

23.8%
(2020: 19.3%)

Waverton ended the
2020 year with record
AUM and, after a
relatively small fall in
the first two months
of 2021, continued to
increase and, again,
finished the year with
new record AUM.
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The investments Waverton made in
2020 regarding the office environment
and digital working practices led to costs
being kept under control.
The two main items of expenditure
incurred by the firm are staff and
property costs.
Pre-bonus costs were higher in
comparison to the prior year £33.6m
(2020: £30.9m). However, they were
£1.1m within budget, largely due to some
budgeted hires taking place towards
the end of the year as the pandemic
elongated the recruitment process
and potential hires being pushed to
2022. Headcount for the year was
160 (2020: 149) versus an initial budget
of 162. The office at Babmaes Street
benefitted from sharing space with
one of the group’s recent acquisitions
(Timothy James & Partners) which has
led to an increase in profit of £0.7m as
part of the property expense is shared.
Overall expenditure for the year was
£38.1m (2020: £34.1m).
Profit before tax increased by 46% to
£12.0m (2020: £8.2m). During the prior
period there was a significant drop in
market levels during the first quarter at
the start of the Covid pandemic although
markets recovered in the second
quarter. 2021 also compares favourably
against the prior 15 month period
accounting period where Profit Before
Tax was £10.2m.
The increase in the profit margin reflects
the growth of the business with 2021
yielding 23.8% (2020: 19.3%).

Five year track record of growth
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Chief Financial Officer
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COO REPORT

As a direct result of the pandemic and
how it challenged previously accepted
work practices, Waverton reviewed
its disaster recovery arrangements and
agreed to decommission its Disaster
Recovery site in H2 with no detriment to
business continuity or resilience.

Increasing operational
resilience and scalability
2021 started and finished with Waverton
Investment Management’s employees
being instructed to work from home in
line with the Covid guidelines. During the
year however we kept our offices open
for those employees that either could
not work from home or required access
to the office.
As was the case in 2020, working
remotely presented no material
challenges and Waverton’s IT
infrastructure continued to evolve as
we migrated more services into the
Microsoft Azure Cloud to deliver a
compliant agile working arrangement
for our employees.
Waverton’s partnership with Microsoft
has continued to develop and we are
now benefitting from improved business
resilience with regular IT security
updates and training to increase security
awareness across the business and
ensure our clients receive a high level of
protection. In line with our strategy we
intend to migrate our IT development
infrastructure into Azure in 2022.
In recognition of the Waverton
partnership and success of this project,
Microsoft recently completed a case
study of our programme, the rationale,
business strategy, successes and how
utilising their services had transformed
the end user experience.
I think this demonstrates how far
Waverton has come in a relatively
short space of time.
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Having acquired TJP in 2019 and
Cornerstone Asset Management (now
branded Waverton Wealth) in 2021,
integration and achieving synergies that
manage group risk are now an important
areas of focus. The need to review
management and governance structures
across the three businesses within
the Waverton group are increasingly
important to address business, regulatory
and reputational risks in addition to
defining a seamless first class advice-led
investment proposition.
Improving communication and
coordination of operational and IT
initiatives is underway and we are
reviewing existing operating models and
how they can be augmented, through
the development or introduction
of new technology to achieve the
necessary transformation. Part of
this transformation is to explore how
technology can support multiple client
personas and digitise the delivery of
services efficiently in a scalable manner.
The client on-boarding process is an area
of initial focus that has started to deliver
improvements in our clients’ experience,
which we hope to build on during 2022,
through the introduction of a dedicated
client on-boarding team that is working
closely with the IT Development team to
deliver a high quality digital service.
Another facet of the integration has
been to align both TJP and Waverton
Wealth IT infrastructure to improve
security and deliver consistent
approaches to how their infrastructure is
managed, supported and future-proofed.
Significant progress was made in 2021
and the agreed programme of work will
continue into 2022.

We anticipate not only improvements
in IT security but also communication
within the Waverton group as
technology is aligned.
The strategic partnership with SEI is the
foundation that provides the platform on
which new services can be developed.
Waverton has always invested in IT,
however, due to legacy technology,
particularly in operations, there have been
limitations in our ability to maximise our
return on investment in certain areas.
By utilising SEI’s annual spend on system
research and development capabilities,
access to a wider community of clients
and constant innovation we believe our
highly skilled IT resources can deliver
consistent real value to both the business
and our clients that will differentiate
Waverton from our peers.
As part of the project to leverage SEI’s
operational services and technology, due
to be completed at the earliest in April
2023, Waverton’s existing operations
team will transfer to SEI to support both
the transition and new operating model
once live. Considered a critical area of risk
to the programme, Waverton invested
significant time in understanding SEI’s
culture and values.

As with Microsoft, by
partnering with a larger
organisation it is our belief that
SEI provide improved business
resilience, support strategic
growth, reduce the future
cost of production, replace
fixed costs with a variable
cost model, and lower the risk
profile of our business.
We have been impressed with the level of
engagement with the SEI team, at all levels,
when discussing our employee’s welfare
and future participation in the journey.
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As with Microsoft, by partnering with
a larger organisation it is our belief that
SEI provide improved business resilience,
support strategic growth, reduce the
future cost of production, replace fixed
costs with a variable cost model, and
lower the risk profile of our business.
In addition to expanding our digital
landscape we are also exploring process
automation and how repeatable
tasks can be made more efficient.
Process automation can deliver real
benefits in terms of efficiency gains,
reducing risk and improving speed of
delivery. Although at the very early stages
it will be interesting to see what can
be achieved.
Strides have also been taken to deliver
better management information in 2021
and these have highlighted the need for
a different approach to data together
with increased spend and resource.
The IT Development and Middle Office
teams will work in tandem to support
an initiative to better leverage the data
available today as well as source and
organise new data that can provide clarity
regarding business progress as well as
improve future decision-making.

the building management company and
energy consultants, these include use of
rain water, energy efficiency (increased
use of solar / improved EPC rating), waste
and recycling management.

Update on our funds business
The decision to merge the Waverton
Core and Tactical Equity (renamed
Strategic Equity) Funds and bring the
investment management back inhouse brought to an end Waverton’s
long-standing relationship with Royal
London Asset Management and reflects
our belief in our excellent in-house
investment capabilities.
To support the merger, the Waverton
Dealing Desk leveraged the Goldman
Sachs proprietary Algorithmic Portfolio
Execution (APEX) suite to establish the
optimal trading schedule and mitigate
significant market risk. The merger was
a complete success and in line with cost
projections. Due to the complexity of
the transaction and success achieved,
Waverton again featured in a case study,
this time published by Goldman Sachs.

We start 2022 with a new governance
model to support the Waverton
Investment Fund Plc fund range in
Ireland following the selection and
implementation of MJ Hudson’s thirdparty Management Company Solution.
We believe this will continue to support
our evolving governance model and
ensure investor interests are at the
forefront of all future decisions.

Michael Allen
Chief Operating Officer

Looking ahead, we carry
momentum into 2022 on
a number of workstreams
that form part of the
overall strategy to deliver a
robust, resilient and scalable
operating model that can is
sufficiently adaptable to meet
the changing needs of our
industry, regulation and, most
importantly, our clients.

The recruitment of a new Corporate
Sustainability Manager to coordinate
Waverton’s investment and corporate
sustainability objectives was an important
strategic decision in 2021 to improve
Waverton’s stewardship governance at a
corporate level.
One of the many targets agreed by the
newly formed Sustainability Committee
was a commitment for Waverton to
be carbon neutral by 2030. Whilst at
the early stages of the project, work
has begun both internally and externally
with our partners to establish the
necessary steps required to achieve this
ambitious objective.
Our offices at 16 Babmaes Street have
received a BREEAM rating, the code for
sustainable buildings, of Excellent achieving
a score of 75.7% and we continue to
strive for improvements working with

Waverton’s head office in Piccadilly, London
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OUR PEOPLE

Employee engagement
Waverton conducted its second
employee survey during April and May
2021, with results presented to the
Board, Management Committee and
all employees.

Creating value for
our people
As the business has grown, looking
after our people has become an even
bigger focus, with greater complexity
and importance. During 2021 we hired
22 permanent employees and the
HR function completed an impressive
number of projects and initiatives.
Looking forward, this means that as
a firm we are set-up to deliver value
for our people who, in turn, are best
placed to look after our clients and other
key stakeholders.

The participation rate was excellent: 93%
(compared with 86% in 2020) and overall
the survey results and trend data were
extremely positive. For example, three
quarters of all questions had a positive
score of 70% or more and 26 out of 29
questions with an equivalent from the
2020 survey improved their rating.
Survey highlights:
2%

7%

10%

Flexible working
Incorporating feedback from the
employee survey and to ensure
alignment with emerging best
practise, Waverton introduced a
more formal Flexible Working policy.
This was updated throughout the year to
incorporate the changing Covid guidance,
and was designed to embrace a more
‘hybrid’ approach to working from home
and the office.

17%

9 0% feel motivated to
perform well
in their role
9 2% are proud to say
that they work for
Waverton
7 3% feel valued for their
contribution to the success
of the firm
7 3% envisage themselves
working at Waverton in five
years’ time

In addition, employees feel there is
much greater clarity about the business’s
strategy, there is a lot of respect for
colleagues and line managers and people
enjoy the culture that Waverton has.

Wellbeing and mental health
As the pandemic and its impact
continued throughout 2021, we kept up
the support for our employees with a
number of formal and informal initiatives.
Whilst mindful of the government
guidelines on remote working, we kept
the office open, maintained our regular
All Staff Calls to ensure everyone was
connected and had regular touchpoints
with the whole business. Sometimes the
contact was merely to provide some
much-needed light relief and quiz nights
and talent competitions were organised
to provide this.
In 2021, Waverton trained four Mental
Health First Aiders (MHFAs) who
delivered a number of events to support
all employees.
Coffee mornings were held to provide a
sense of community whilst people were
working remotely. The MHFAs invited all
employees to virtual coffee mornings to
choreograph an opportunity to “bump
into” colleagues they may not have
caught up with in a while.

Proud

Motivated

90%

92%

(+2%)

(+7%)

Employee
Engagement
at Waverton
Valued

73%
(+10%)
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Loyal

73%
(+17%)
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Mental Health Awareness Week:
to draw attention to Mental Health
Awareness Week (10-16 May), the
MHFAs organised some activities
for everyone:
− T
 ED Talk with David O’Mahoney:
Sleep Hygiene
− TED Talk with David O’Mahoney:
Gratitude and Daily Reflection
− Create and Meditate:
a creative workshop
− Art and Energy Workshop:
a mental workout workshop
− Energy and Mediation:
Intuition and Business
− Wellness Sessions:
one-to-one therapy sessions

Career progression
To ensure the business is well-resourced
and resilient, as well as making sure our
employees have clarity on their own
career pathways, a firm-wide succession
planning exercise was carried out during
2021. This involved the introduction of
corporate titles and detailed descriptions
of the capabilities and responsibilities at
each level.
Alongside the wider provision of
training and development, this exercise
led to a greater focus on Leadership &
Management development, enabling
the business to identify our pipeline of
emerging talent and, for those potentially
assuming more senior roles, it has
encouraged more healthy discussion
between managers and employees about
their individual development.

Remuneration
Following a remuneration review carried
out by PWC in 2020, the link between
performance and remuneration was
further strengthened and a Long-Term
Incentive Plan (LTIP) for employees was
created in the form of equity shares in

the Company. The objective being to
incentivise those employees contributing
to the business’s growth, whilst providing
a means of retention.
Further development of our
benchmarking analysis has been achieved
through partnership with McLagan,
whose data was used during the 2021
compensation review, in order to
provide a broad data set from which to
assess our compensation compared with
the external market.

Talent recruitment
and management
The centralisation of recruitment
continued to be key in managing the
process to help increase diversity
within the business. Regular discussion
with agencies to ensure that they
were providing the most diverse set
of candidates and where required,
challenging managers on their hiring
decisions to ensure they selected the
best person for the role, regardless
of their gender (or any other
characteristic), were a continued focus
and successfully utilised.
Partnerships have been initiated with
companies who support our diversity
initiatives within Waverton, for example
GAIN (Girls Are INvestors) and
Investment 20/20.

Following the introduction of the
corporate values, these have been
integrated into the annual performance
objectives for 2022 and will continue to
be a foundation of the Waverton culture.

Responsibility of Stewardship
We take care of all that we are
entrusted to protect and safeguard.
Client relationships and assets,
employees’ careers and their wellbeing
are at the heart of this.
We have a responsibility as a business to
help achieve high social and environmental
standards within our wider community.

Pursuit of Excellence
We strive to be outstanding in all
that we do.
We constantly challenge ourselves
to learn, so we can improve what we do
and adapt to the changing needs of our
clients and staff.

Value of Partnership
We believe in an alignment of purpose
with our clients and we work in
partnership with them towards
common objectives.
We share ownership of our company
and we have a responsibility to each
other and to our society.
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OUR PEOPLE continued

Graduates and
work experience
Whilst we do not have a formal
graduate or intern scheme in place,
we do run a work experience
week every year. In 2021, the week
6-10 September was dedicated to a
cohort of ten delegates who were all
either at university or just graduated.
The week included a full
timetable including:
− w
 orkshops on investment
basics, cyber security,
compliance, operation risk and
ethical investment
− mock interviews, CV workshop
and tips
− a project on stock selection,
where at the end of the week,
the students presented stocks to
a panel of Waverton staff
− lunch with a selection of
Waverton employees
and Management
Committee members
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Training and development

Measuring the Gender Pay Gap

LinkedIn Learning – as part of our
commitment to invest in both our
employee’s professional and personal
development, we signed up to LinkedIn
Learning in October 2021, which allowed
our employees to access a library
of thousands of hours of e-learning.
With the content available 24/7, LinkedIn
Learning supports our transition to an
environment of continuous development
and performance management (also
supported through the Clear Review
performance appraisal system). 43% of
our employees have now signed-up and
work continues to encourage employees
to utilise it as a tool to assist in both their
personal and professional development.

The Gender Pay Gap regulations require
each company within a group who
employ more than 250 employees to
report on its Gender Pay Gap. In 2021
our headcount was 160, therefore we
are not currently obliged to formally
report on our Gender Pay Gap.
However, this topic is on the agenda of
a number of committees and the Board,
which serves to highlight how serious the
business considers the Gender Pay Gap
and the impact it may have.

An Unconscious Bias and Diversity
training session was attended by the
Management Committee with a further
session organised for the Board in
December 2021. Company-wide training
is scheduled for Q1 2022, with the
intention of increasing our employees’
awareness of Equality, Diversity &
Inclusion (ED&I). The aim is that by
strengthening their understanding of the
benefits of ED&I and the part they have
to play in building a business that accepts
everyone as an individual, it will ensure
that we have an even fairer culture.

Analysis of the Company’s Gender Pay
Gap and associated data is presented by
HR to the Remuneration Committee
on an annual basis. This analysis
includes commentary on the current
position, as well as recommendations
and suggestions for future initiatives
to improve.

We are confident that the
business does not have any
issues with regards to equal
pay – where men and women
are performing the same role
and have the same or similar
levels of experience, they
appear to be paid equally.
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In 2021, Waverton signed-up to
the Women in Finance Charter.
The charter is a commitment from
those financial services firms who
sign-up to it, that they will adhere
to a set of internally agreed targets
that are designed to support
women’s progression in more
senior roles within the business.
Results of progress against the
targets are published online and
are available to the public, and
complement our existing ED&I
target which includes hiring a
female Board member by the end
of 2022.

Looking forward – what
more can we do?
F lexible working/hybrid working –
continue to embed the new culture
of hybrid working arrangements –
focusing on encouraging people back
into the office whilst enabling a fair
and manageable level of flexibility.
With teams being split between the
office and home, it is important to
support the inclusion and involvement
of employees irrespective of where they
are working on any given day.
Career progression – continue to build
on the implementation of the new
corporate title/competency framework
in order to clarify opportunities for
future progress. We will re-run the
succession planning exercise on an
annual basis to identify skills/experience
gaps and development prospects.
Managers will continue having open
dialogue with employees about their
development and there will be a
continued push on increased usage of
the Clear Review system with which to
record feedback.
Strategic vision – continue to
communicate our strategic vision across
the business and integrate this into team
and individual objectives.

Remuneration and benefits – focus
on increasing the link between effort,
performance rating and reward.
Ensure that our reward offering remains
current and favourable against the
market and that the benefits package is
progressive and competitive.
Fairness and equality – focus on gender,
ethnicity and social mobility across
the business, with particular emphasis
on hiring and development. Look to
collaborate with organisations that can
help enhance our diversity. Increase our
diversity initiatives and improve actual
representation within the business –
ensuring a constant effort to achieve and
deliver against our agreed targets.
Equality, Diversity & Inclusivity – launch
a specific ED&I survey (scheduled to
take place in Q1 2022), which has been
commissioned to explore where the
business currently sits in terms of how
diverse it is (aside from the data already
recorded – gender and age) and how
our employees feel about equality and
inclusion at Waverton.
Leadership and collaboration – focus
on leadership/management development
– enhance access to training for existing
and aspiring leaders supported through
LinkedIn Learning, the Apprentice Levy
Leadership & Management development
and partnership with other leadership
development specialists.

Karen Davis
Head of Human Resources
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A STRATEGIC APPROACH
TO RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT

Responsible Stewardship
2021 has been a landmark year for
our stewardship culture. We take our
role as stewards of our clients’ capital
very seriously and continue to make
strides aiming to improve ourselves
in this capacity. The appointment of a
Corporate Sustainability Manager and
the advent of a Sustainability Committee
have been significant steps in our
development. Beyond these initiatives
there has been a compulsory, firm-wide
ESG training initiative in conjunction with
PRI, and relevant ongoing training in
areas to support our robust governance
approach such as CASS, GDPR, Conduct
Risk and Anti-Money Laundering.

A focus on Sustainability
The Sustainability Committee, chaired by
our COO was established in 2021 and
sits alongside our other committees, all
of which are designed to ensure that the
Company’s actions, both present and
future, are in the best interests of all our
stakeholders. Our stakeholders are not
just our clients, we also seek to look after
our employees, our shareholders and
wider society.

We demonstrate our commitment
to our purpose and values through
our corporate sustainability targets
which are as follows:
1.	Achieve clients’ objectives
through active investment and
responsible stewardship
2.	Achieve consistent and positive
client recognition beyond
financial objectives
3.	Achieve employee recognition as
excellent employer
4.	Deliver sustainable achievements
in ED&I
5.	Achieve corporate net zero
by 2030
6.	Increase charitable activities
by 2030

Our Sustainability strategy encompasses both our investment
approach and our corporate impact
Sustainability Committee
A single overarching perspective
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Responsible Investing

Corporate Responsibility

Focus on our investment activities

Focus on social and environment change
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Amplifying our ESG message
One area that we are particularly proud
of is our fully ESG-integrated investment
approach. Not only have the investment
team all undergone advanced ESG
training, but all investments are assessed
for Environment, Social and Governance
factors. We have made progress
formalising our materiality framework
and begun implementing a more detailed
log of all of company engagement.
Throughout 2021 we have increased
the communications about our ESG
approach – to better inform our
clients and the wider market on how
we integrate key ESG factors into our
investment decisions, and many of our
investment experts have joined industry
discussions and published articles on
the subject.

Delivering results through our
integrated ESG approach
As active, rather than passive managers,
of our clients’ capital, engagement forms
an important aspect of our investment
process, across all asset classes.
Given our global, active, and direct
approach to investment, we hold
regular meetings with companies to
better understand the assets that we
own. We are able to exchange views
with management, both favourable and

otherwise, and discuss progress against
stated objectives. Where possible,
we also aim to encourage favourable
behaviours via the voting process.
During 2021, we enhanced our
collaborative efforts with others in order
to help promote the global responsible
investment agenda. We joined
ClimateAction100+ and the Carbon
Disclosure Project (CDP) in 2021, both
of which aim to improve and standardise
corporate climate-related disclosures,
initiatives we fully endorse.
Further details about our engagement
activity and voting record are included
in our Responsible Investment Engagement and Voting 2021 report
which is available on our website.

Despite the ongoing challenges of travel
restrictions in 2021, we maintained our
engagement levels with companies in the
US, UK, Europe, Japan and Asia in 2021.
The growing relaxation of restrictions
will, however, allow the return of
company roadshows to the UK, physical
conferences worldwide and in-person
meetings that will likely increase the level
of interaction we have with companies
this year.

673

Company meetings
(2020: 705)

76%

of meetings held with
senior management
(2020: 72%)

45%

of meetings with
small groups or
one-to-one
(2020: 45%)

Jennifer Fisher, Head of Equities talking
about our approach to ESG
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Making progress
in key areas
As a business, we recognise that we
have both a responsibility, and an
opportunity, to help effect positive social
and environmental change. Employees,
clients and other stakeholders are
increasingly focused on this area of
Waverton’s activities.
Waverton’s Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee,
chaired by the Company Secretary and
Corporate Sustainability Manager, was
charged with coordinating the firm’s
efforts in this area, and so was structured
into three specific working groups:
Employee Wellbeing, Philanthropic
Giving, and Environmental Awareness
& Impact. Each group included
representatives from across the firm
and met regularly to discuss new and
ongoing initiatives.
The Employee Wellbeing group
continued to organise employee
initiatives throughout 2021 with online
yoga sessions during the national
lockdown and subsidised massages for
employees once permitted.
The Philanthropic Giving group was
particularly active in 2021. As well as
actively supporting the Charities Aid
Foundation’s Give As You Earn scheme,
Waverton was delighted to sponsor two
Jeff Keen Charity Challenges (JKCC),
allowing participants to predict the
scoring over the Augusta Masters and
The Ryder Cup in support of Glass Door
Homeless Charity (raising £7,936) and
Marie Curie (£5,303) respectively.
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Jeff Keen is Head of Fixed Income
at Waverton and has been running
such competitions for over 20 years,
helping to raise thousands of pounds
for different charities, but this was the
first year Waverton was involved at a
corporate level.

£7,936
in support of Glass Door
Homeless Charity

£5,303

raised for Marie Curie

Commenting specifically on the JKCC
donation, Glass Door confirmed
that this could fund “six months of
guest expenses, such as the cost of
replacement birth certificates and
passports. This might sound like a small
thing, but without being able to prove
one's eligibility for benefits or the right to
live and work in the UK, it is impossible
for guests to access provision from
local authorities such as council funded
temporary accommodation, which is
often the first step in finding a route into
permanent council accommodation.”

£5,000
donated to Critical NHS
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Four staff members also participated in
Glass Door’s annual Sleep Out, giving up
their beds and spending a night sleeping
in Duke of York Square in Chelsea.
This raised £15,091, and Glass Door said
this “could fund running our hostel for
one week – this includes the cost of rent
and running costs of the building; three
meals a day for each guest; equipment
such as PPE; cleaning and laundry as well
as insurance.” Waverton also secured a
place at the London Marathon via Glass
Door, raising £4,923. A final initiative
of the year arranged with the help of
the Philanthropic Giving group was a
company-wide ‘Movember’ effort, raising
£1,420 for various charities supporting
men’s health.

The Environmental Awareness &
Impact group engaged in World Earth
Day on 22 April 2021 and focussed on
several initiatives to reduce the firm’s
environmental impact, increasing our
recycling efforts, and reducing our
energy consumption.

Looking forward
The CSR Committee, which has now
been renamed the Waverton Impact
Working Group, has several plans
in place for 2022, including further
emphasis on the firm’s plans for achieving
a net zero target, an employee vote
to select a corporate charity partner,
and support for employee mental
health including the expansion of
the firm’s Mental Health First Aiders
training programme.    

£15,091

raised for Glass Door’s
annual Sleep Out

£4,923

raised for Glass Door via the
London Marathon

£1,420

raised through a company-wide

‘Movember’ effort

Andrew Denham-Davis, Nick Tucker, Charles Scott
Plummer and Louis Stride raising money for homeless
charity Glass Door

Peter Stewart running the London Marathon
to raise funds for Glass Door
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

In September 2021, the group
completed one of our strategic
objectives by acquiring Cornerstone
Asset Management – now rebranded
Waverton Wealth. This will allow us
to offer integrated Wealth Planning
and Investment Management to our
Private Clients.

Continued resilience
builds strength
Despite the continuing disruption caused
by the Covid restrictions, I am delighted
to report that the Waverton team ‘rose
to the challenge’, with the result that the
company reported record profits and
record inflows underpinned by strong
investment performance across all asset
classes. It is pleasing to note that all
four divisions of the Company: Private
Clients, Charities, Adviser Solutions and
Institutional made positive contributions
towards these results.
Despite many months when the whole
Company was working from home,
we continued to deliver a seamless
service to our clients in terms of
investment performance and portfolio
administration. This has been highlighted
by our clients rating us with almost
double the industry average score in the
client engagement/satisfaction survey we
conducted in the last quarter of the year.

The Board and I would like
to thank all of our colleagues
at Waverton for their
professionalism during what
was another challenging year.

The Board and I would like to thank all
of our colleagues at Waverton for their
professionalism during what was another
challenging year. It is their enthusiasm
to achieve the best for our clients that
makes Waverton such a special place
to work. I would also particularly like
to congratulate Nick Tucker and his
Management Committee for achieving
these results which could not have
been done without their dedication
and commitment.
2022 started with several headwinds
for financial markets: rising inflation,
geopolitical risk – the Russia/Ukraine
situation – and rising energy prices.
With our experienced investment
team and a focus on achieving clients
objectives, I remain confident that
Waverton will be able to meet the
expectations of all our stakeholders:
clients, employees, shareholders and
wider society.

David Rosier
Chairman

Section 172 statement

Stakeholder engagement

Clients
To build lasting relationships by
listening to and partnering with our
clients, consultants, advisers and
professional connections to support their
individual circumstances and objectives.
How we engage
− Client survey
− Personal meetings
− Ad hoc feedback

Employees
To look after and support our employees’
progression including their physical and
mental wellbeing as well as encourage and
enable professional development.
How we engage
− Employee survey
− All staff calls
− Learning and development

Shareholders
To foster a corporate culture that
promotes the sustainable long-term
success of the Company, encourages
achievement of group objectives and
ensures high governance standards.
How we engage
− Board meetings
− Business reports
− Non-Executive Director engagement

Society
To contribute to society in a positive
and meaningful way both through
our investment decisions and
combined actions.
How we engage
− ESG integrated investment approach
− Charitable activities
− Employee wellbeing and family support
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Michael Allen

John Bellamy

Sasha Dabliz

Chief Operating Officer

Head of Adviser Solutions

Head of Marketing

Karen Davis

William Dinning

Rupert Elwes

Head of Human Resources

Chief Investment Officer

Head of Private Clients

James Pike

Charles Scott Plummer

Harish Shah

Head of Charities

Head of Institutional

Head of Legal and Compliance

Nick Tucker

David Welch

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

25

Waverton Annual Report & Accounts 2021

Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Algernon Percy *

David Rosier *

Nick Tucker * +

Managing Director

Chairman

Chief Executive Officer

Algernon joined Waverton in 2003,
having previously worked for nine
years in the Private Client department
of Mercury Asset Management (later
Merrill Lynch Investment Managers).
He is a member of Waverton’s MultiAsset Team and also a Portfolio Manager.

David previously held senior roles at S.G
Warburg prior to becoming a founding
director of Mercury Asset Management
Group, before it was taken over by
Merrill Lynch in 1997. He became
chairman of Private Investors at Merrill
Lynch Investment Management after
which, in 2003, he became a founding
partner of wealth management boutique
Thurleigh Investment Managers. Prior to
joining Waverton, David was a Senior
Adviser at Tilney Investment Managers.

Nick joined Waverton in February 2020
as Chief Executive having spent nearly
30 years building wealth management
businesses in the UK and overseas.
Prior to Waverton, Nick was Managing
Director and Head of UBS Domestic
Wealth Management business in the UK.
For the first 20 years of his career, he
was with Merrill Lynch, latterly as Head
of Private Clients UK and Ireland.

Algernon graduated from Christ Church,
Oxford with a degree in History and is
an Associate of the Chartered Institute
for Securities & Investment (CISI).

David was appointed chairman in
September 2017 and has over 40
years of experience within the wealth
management, charity and investment
fund sectors. David is a former
Commissioner of the Royal Hospital
Chelsea, former chairman of the
advisory board for the Armed Forces
Common Investment Fund and a former
trustee of the Nuffield Trust for the
Forces of the Crown. He is a trustee of
the Battle of Britain Memorial Trust, the
Cavalry and Guards Club and the Peter
Stormonth Darling Charitable Trust.
David graduated from Keble College,
Oxford with a degree in law, after which
he spent five years in the British Army.
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Nick graduated from Exeter University
with a degree in Political Studies.
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Sebastian Dovey * +

Charles Jillings * +

David Morgan *

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Sebastian was a co-founder of Scorpio
Partnership, an award-winning wealth
management consultancy and market
research agency. In 2018 he was named
a Global Industry Thought Leader in
recognition for innovation, insight and
leadership services to the industry over
two decades by Wealth Briefing.

Charles is a director of ICM Limited and
Chief Executive of ICM Management
Limited, a regulated UK AIFM, which are
joint portfolio managers of UIL Limited
(“UIL”) and Utilico Emerging Markets
Trust plc (“UEM”).

David Morgan has over thirty-five years’
experience in international banking,
building his career at Standard Chartered
Bank in Europe and the Far East and
becoming Chief Executive for the UK
and Europe in 1998.

Charles is responsible for the day to
day running of UIL and UEM, and he
has been a director of several listed and
unlisted companies. Charles is currently
a director of Somers Limited, Waverton
Investment Management Limited,
ICM Mobility Limited and Allectus
Capital Limited.

Since leaving Standard Chartered in
2003, he has been involved in a wide
range of business advisory and nonexecutive roles and is currently a NonExecutive Director of Somers Limited
and a Non-Executive Director of PCF
Group plc.

He was appointed to the Waverton
Board in 2021 as a Non-executive
Director (NED) and sits on the boards
of several wealth management firms in
the US and Europe including F2 Strategy
(Chair), FiComm (NED), and Moneyhub
(Advisory Board).
He graduated from University College
London in 1993 with first class
honours in Modern History and also
has a Masters with distinction in Cold
War History from London School
of Economics.

Directors marked with an asterisk (*) above are also directors of Waverton
Investment Management Group Limited. Their interests in the share capital of
that undertaking are disclosed in its Financial Statements. Directors marked
with a cross (+) are also directors of the Company’s related group entities
that share a common parent. These entities are Timothy James & Partners
Limited, Waverton Wealth Planning LLP and their associated holding companies.
Sebastian Dovey was appointed on 22 February 2021.
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Consideration of risks and
uncertainties
The Company is reliant upon asset-based
fees for the majority of its revenue and
is therefore subject to the inherent risk
and uncertainty of financial markets.
The Company’s exposure to other
risks such as interest rate, credit and
concentration risk are considered in
Note 20.
In the context of considerations of risks
and uncertainties it is noteworthy that
whilst there has been significant growth
in financial markets during 2021 with
each quarter showing an increase in the
MSCI World Index GBP, an aggregate
rise of 23%, the start of 2022 has
shown a fall. The same index fell by 7%
in the first two months of 2022 as the
outbreak of the war in the Ukraine and
other geopolitical factors have created a
directional change in market conditions.
As a company which invests the vast
majority of its client assets outside the
UK, persistent sterling strength can
be a headwind. Sterling was materially
unchanged during 2021 against the
US dollar which is the main currency
exposure for the Company. The volatility
in the international climate during
the beginning of 2022 could lead to
significant fluctuations in exchange rates
and stock markets.
The Company does not have any
material exposure to either Russian
clients or investments in Russia.
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Operational risk

People risk

Together with the Risk Committee,
Management Committee, the Audit, Risk
and Compliance Committee (ARCC),
the board, management and employees
of Waverton strive to manage risk (both
known and emerging) effectively to
protect both the interests of our clients
and the Company’s reputation.

The Board recognises our employees as
a critical asset and utilises the following
methods to mitigate potential people
related risks:

Conduct risk
The board considers that culture and
values are a key determinant of the longterm success of Waverton and seeks to
ensure that the appropriate behaviours
are in evidence at all levels across the
firm, including in the following ways:
-	linking Senior Managers and
Certification Regime (SM & CR)
requirements to the creation of
Key Risk Indicators (KRI) and Key
Performance Indicators (KPI) and
management information to monitor,
review and escalate conduct risk
-	development of a reporting
framework to the Risk Committee
and the ARCC
-	implementation of a project to refresh
and define the values of the firm
-	encouraging and enabling eligible
employees to participate in share
ownership to align long-term interests
of employees with the firm.
-	annual and ongoing performance
management review process with
all employees

-	ensuring that the appropriate
remuneration structures are in place
and undertaking a regular internal and
external benchmarking exercise
-	succession planning for all senior
positions and incorporation of
development plans for all staff
- annual employee engagement survey
-	employee participation in
share ownership
-	annual and ongoing performance
management review process with
all employees
-	provision of a comprehensive benefits
package including a non-contributory
pension scheme
-	creation of a CSR (Corporate Social
Responsibility) Committee who,
alongside our HR department, have
been instrumental in championing
employee well-being. As a result we
have implemented several initiatives
during the period of the pandemic
including, information regarding
wellbeing and contact groups,
employee engagement during remote
working and promoting mental
health awareness
-	implementation of a flexible working
policy to support a remote working
environment, which was already
underway in response to a previous
employee survey but accelerated due
to the requirements of operating
during the pandemic
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Cyber risk

Covid risk

Regulator

Keeping Waverton’s systems safe
and protecting the data that we hold
has never been more important.
It is a commitment that continues to be
threatened by security attacks ranging
from opportunistic hackers using
pre-built tools through to targeted,
well-resourced, cyber activity. The use
of sophisticated malware, in particular
ransomware attacks, has been on the
rise and driven the need for better and
more proactive corporate IT security.

The Covid pandemic created significant
disruption in 2020 and required the
Company to review the operating
environment within which it worked.
This led to organising resources to allow
all employees to work remotely during
periods of lockdown and the flexibility to
work from the office when appropriate.
The Company has continued to operate
on this basis during 2021 and believes
that this style of hybrid working is now
permanent. The pandemic is clearly
not over, and there is a risk of further
variants or outbreaks, however the
Company is able to move from an officebased operation to remote working
at will to protect employees, continue
operations and comply with regulation.

The Company is authorised and
regulated by the UK Financial Conduct
Authority (“the FCA”) and the Securities
and Exchange Commission (“the SEC”).

As a result, the recent adoption
of enterprise cloud computing has
improved both business resilience and
security for the wider business. The close
integration between applications and the
built-in defences of Cloud has improved
the security posture of Waverton.
Waverton have also been proactive
in cyber security awareness amongst
Waverton staff to ensure they are aware
of the types of attacks which could
disrupt services.
Waverton continues rolling out its
new technology direction, the onset
of the Covid pandemic in early 2020
increased the pace of change. The Board
of Waverton agreed to widen the
scope of the programme to ensure all
staff could work remotely and ensure
that Waverton had a strategy that
reduced operational risks from being a
distributed business.
Waverton continues to use best
practice standards to manage cyber
security risk, in particular the National
Institute of Standards and Technology
(NIST) framework, and has undertaken
assessments to be carried out by third
parties to ensure the security of the firm.
The NIST Cyber Security Framework
provides security guidance to create a
policy on how Waverton assesses and
continuously evolves its ability to prevent,
detect, and respond to cyber attacks.

Directors and Directors’
interests
The Directors of the Company who
served during the period, and at the time
these Financial Statements were issued,
are listed below:
A A Percy*
G N Tucker*
The Non-Executive Directors of the
Company who served during the period,
are listed below:
F D S Rosier*
C D O Jillings*
D J Morgan*
S S Dovey* (appointed
22 February 2021)
The Company is a 100% subsidiary of
Waverton Investment Management
Group Limited.
Directors marked with asterisk (*)
above are also Directors of Waverton
Investment Management Group Limited.
Their interests in the share capital of
that undertaking are disclosed in its
Financial Statements.

Insurance
Throughout the period, the Company
maintained insurance to provide
protection for clients against losses
arising from any negligence or dishonesty
of its employees.

Directors’ indemnities
Directors benefited from qualifying
third-party indemnity provisions in
place during the financial period and at
the date of this report. The Company
provided qualifying third-party indemnity
provisions to directors of associated
companies during the financial period
and at the date of this report.

Donations
Charitable donations made by the
Company during the year amounted to
£14,785 (2020: £34,340).
Political donations made by the Company
during the period amounted to nil
(2020: nil).

Risk management
Risk management policies are set out in
Note 20 to the Financial Statements.

Employee involvement and
employment of disabled
persons
The Company gives full and fair
consideration to disabled persons in
employment applications, training and
career development including those who
become disabled during their period
of employment.

29

Waverton Annual Report & Accounts 2021

Governance Report

DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

Dividends
Dividends of £7.8m were paid during the
period (2020: £4.3m).

Auditor
Pursuant to Section 487 of the
Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be
deemed to be reappointed and Saffery
Champness LLP will therefore continue
in office.

Disclosure of information to
auditor
The Directors who held office at the
date of approval of the Strategic and
Directors’ Report confirm that so far
as they are each aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the
Company’s auditor is unaware; and each
Director has taken all the steps that he
or she ought to have taken as a Director
in order to make himself or herself
aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company’s
auditor is aware of that information.
Signed on behalf of the Board of
Directors on 21 April 2022.
By order of the Board.
David Rosier
Chairman
16 Babmaes Street
London
SW1Y 6AH
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Statement of Directors’
responsibilities in respect
of the Strategic Report, the
Directors’ Report and the
Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for
preparing the Strategic Report, the
Directors’ Report and the Financial
Statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.
Company law requires the Directors
to prepare financial statements for
each financial year. Under that law
they have elected to prepare the
Financial Statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European
Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU) and
applicable law.
Under company law the Directors must
not approve the Financial Statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the profit or
loss of the Company for that period.
In preparing these Financial Statements,
the directors are required to:

The directors are responsible for
keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the Financial
Statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are responsible for
such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation
of Financial Statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the company and to prevent
and detect fraud and other irregularities.
Signed on behalf of the Board of
Directors on 21 April 2022.
By order of the Board.
David Rosier
Chairman
16 Babmaes Street
London
SW1Y 6AH

-	select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently;
-	make judgements and estimates that
are reasonable, relevant and reliable;
-	state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EU;
-	assess the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going
concern; and
-	use the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend
to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s
report to the members

Conclusions relating to going
concern

Opinion

We have nothing to report in respect of
the following matters in relation to which
the ISAs (UK) require us to report to
you where:

We have audited the Financial
Statements of Waverton Investment
Management Limited (the ‘Company’)
for the year ended 31 December
2021 which comprise the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement
of financial position, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of
cash flows and notes to the Financial
Statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union.
In our opinion the Financial Statements:
-	give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company’s affairs as at
31 December 2021 and of its profit
for the period then ended;
-	have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union; and
-	have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing
(UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the Financial Statements in the
UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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-	the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation
of the Financial Statements is not
appropriate; or
-	the directors have not disclosed in
the Financial Statements any identified
material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the Company’s
ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months
from the date when the Financial
Statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters
prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work
undertaken in the course of our audit:
-	the information given in the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report
for the financial year for which the
Financial Statements are prepared
is consistent with the Financial
Statements; and
-	the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report have been
prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are
required to report by
exception

The directors are responsible for the
other information. The other information
comprises the information included
in the annual report, other than the
Financial Statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. Our opinion on the
Financial Statements does not cover the
other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In the light of the knowledge and
understanding of the Company and its
environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material
misstatements in the Strategic Report
and the Directors’ Report.

In connection with our audit of the
Financial Statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent
with the Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the Financial Statements
or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report
that fact.

-	adequate accounting records have
not been kept, or returns adequate
for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

We have nothing to report in respect
of the following matters where the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

-	the Financial Statements are not
in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or
-	certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not
made; or
-	we have not received all the
information and explanations we
require for our audit.
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Responsibilities of Directors

Use of our report

As explained more fully in the Directors’
Responsibilities Statement on page 12,
the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the Financial Statements
and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of
Financial Statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

This report is made solely to the
Company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Company’s members
those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Company and the Company’s
members as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the Financial
Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Financial
Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these
Financial Statements.

Michael Di Leto
(Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Saffery
Champness LLP
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors
71 Queen Victoria Street
London
EC4V 4BE
22 April 2022

A further description of our
responsibilities for the audit of the
Financial Statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Note
12 months to		
15 months to
		
31 December 2021		
31 December 2020
		
£000		 £000
4

50,280 		

53,306

Administrative expenses		

Revenue

(38,149)		

(42,682)

Operating profit		

12,131 		

10,624

21

(271)		

(422)

8

119 		

5

Profit before taxation		

11,979 		

10,207

Income tax charge

(2,286)		

(1,807)

9,693		

8,400

Finance cost
Other income

9

Profit after tax attributable to equity holders of the Company

There was no other comprehensive income other than the profit for the current period and prior years.
All profits for both 2020 and 2021 are from continuing operations.
The notes on pages 38 to 55 form part of these Financial Statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Note
		
		

As at
31 December 2021
£000

As at
31 December 2020
£000

Non-current assets			
Investment in subsidiary

22

-

140

Property, plant and equipment

13

5,780

7,566

Other assets		

1,160

-

152

108

Deferred tax asset

10

Current assets			
Cash at bank and in hand

11

4,926

8,890

Trade and other receivables

12

13,572

12,029

Other assets (Prepayments)

14

1,482

995

Intercompany receivable

23

5,043

4,324

Loan to ultimate parent		

3,000

-

Total assets		

35,115

34,052

Current liabilities			
Trade and other payables

15

9,011

8,098

Financial liabilities

21

1,691

1,625

Tax liability		

579

730

-

-

Deferred tax liability

10

Non-current liabilities			
Financial liabilities

21

4,059

5,750

Provision for restoration costs

18

167

167

Total liabilities		

15,507

16,370

Capital and reserves			
Issued share capital

16

23

23

Share premium account		

313

313

Retained earnings		

19,272

17,346

Total equity		

19,608

17,682

Total equity and liabilities		

35,115

34,052

The notes on pages 38 to 55 form part of these Financial Statements.
These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 April 2022 and signed on its behalf by:
David Rosier
Chairman
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the 12 months ended
31 December 2021

Share
capital
£000

Share
premium
£000

Retained
earnings
£000

Total

23

313

13,272

13,608

Profit after tax

-

-

8,400

8,400

Dividend paid

-

-

(4,326)

(4,326)

23

313

17,346

17,682

Profit after tax

-

-

9,693

9,693

Dividend paid

-

-

(7,767)

(7,767)

23

313

19,272

19,608

Balance as at 30 September 2019

Balance as at 31 December 2020

Balance as at 31 December 2021

The notes on pages 38 to 55 form part of these Financial Statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Note
		
		

As at
31 December 2021
£000

As at
31 December 2020
£000

Cash flows from operating activities						
Profit before tax for the period		

11,979 			

10,207

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash						
provided by/(used in) operating activities						
Non-cash items included in profit before tax						
and other adjustments:						
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

13

1,866 			

Impairment of subsidiary		

140 			

-

Finance cost

21

271			

422

Interest received		

(32)			

(5)

Right-of-use asset		

-			

(8,200)

-			

9,323

102			

226

Right-of-use lease liabilities		
Foreign exchange gains

5

2,598

Adjustments for:						
Net (increase)/decrease in operating assets:						
Trade and other receivables		

(3,399)			

(4,967)

Other assets		

(487)			

795

Net (decrease)/increase in operating liabilities:						
Trade and other payables		

441			

2,165

Tax/Group relief paid		

(2,479)			

(1,825)

Other liabilities		

469 			

(2,467)

Net cash flow generated from operating activities			

8,871			

8,272

Investing activities						
Capital expenditure for property, plant and equipment

13

(80)			

(686)

Interest received		

10			

5

Net cash flow used in investing activities			

(70)		

(681)

Financing activities						
Payments of lease liabilities		

(1,896)			

(2,370)

Loan to ultimate parent		

(3,000)			

-

Dividends paid		

(7,767)			

(4,326)

Net cash flow used in financing activities			

(12,663) 			

(6,696)

Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents			

(3,862) 			

895

Cash at bank and in hand at the beginning of the year 			

8,890 			

8,221

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

5		

(102) 			

(226)

11		

4,926 			

8,890

Cash at bank and in hand

The notes on pages 38 to 55 form part of these Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General

Standards and interpretations

Waverton Investment Management Limited (“the Company”)
is a private company limited by shares incorporated in England
and Wales. The address of the Company’s registered office is
16 Babmaes Street, London, SW1Y 6AH.

Standards issued but not yet effective:

2. Significant accounting policies
a) Statement of compliance
These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the EU (‘IFRSs’). They were authorised for issue by the
Company’s board of directors on 21 April 2022.

b) Basis of preparation
The Financial Statements are presented in pounds sterling
(‘GBP’), rounded to the nearest thousand. They are prepared
on a historical cost basis.
The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Critical accounting estimates and judgements
applied to these Financial Statements are set out in Note 3.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of revision and future
periods if the revision has a significant effect on both current
and future periods.
The accounting reference date has changed from
30 September to 31 December in order for the Company
to align its accounting period with the other entities within
the group, following the acquisition of Timothy James &
Partners Ltd. For this reason the amounts presented in the
Financial Statements relating to the prior period are not
directly comparable.
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under
section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 not to prepare
consolidated accounts. The Financial Statements present
information about the Company as an individual entity and not
the group. Details of the group consolidated statements are set
out in note 25.
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At the date of authorisation of these Financial Statements,
the following standards and interpretations relevant to the
Company and which have not been applied in these Financial
Statements, were in issue but not yet effective.
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2 (Amendments to
IFRS 9, IAS 29, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16), effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
(Amendments to IAS 16), effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022.
Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
(Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets), effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022.
The directors are evaluating the impact that these standards
will have on the financial statements of the Company, however
these are not expected to be significant.

c) Foreign currency
The Company’s functional currency is GBP.
Transactions denominated in currencies other than GBP are
translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated
to GBP at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange differences arising from translation are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are not revalued for
movements in foreign exchange rates.

d) Cash at bank and in hand
For the purpose and preparation of the Statement of
Financial Position and Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash
equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid instruments
with original maturities of three months or less and that are
held for the purpose of cash management.

e) Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities are initially recognised
when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Waverton Annual Report & Accounts 2021

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) or financial liability is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at Fair
Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.
Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured
at: amortised cost; Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income (FVOCI) – debt investment; FVOCI – equity
investment; or FVTPL.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition unless the Company changes its business model for
managing its financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in the business model.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both
of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of
the following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL:
- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held
for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI.
This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL.
This includes all derivative financial instruments. On initial
recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so

eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.
Financial assets – business model assessment
The Company makes an assessment of the business model
in which a financial asset is held at aggregate level because
this best reflects the way the business is managed and
information is provided to management. The information
considered includes:
- the stated policies and objectives for the group of assets and
the operation of those policies in practice;
- how the performance for the group of assets is evaluated and
reported to the Company’s management;
- the objective of the Company in realising the value of the
financial assets
Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions
that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales
for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing
recognition of the assets.
Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and
whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL.
Management have assessed the business model of the
Company and all financial assets are held with the objective to
collect contractual cash flows. The Company does not have any
financial assets held for sale.
The financial assets of the Company are held over a short
period of time, and do not have a significant financing
component. The fair value of financial assets held by the
Company are therefore not materially different from the
book value.
Financial assets – subsequent measurement and
gains and losses
Financial assets at FVTPL:
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains
and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in profit or loss.
Financial assets at amortised cost:
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The amortised cost
is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Debt investments at FVOCI:
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.
Equity investments at FVOCI:
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the Company has transferred substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership.

f) Financial liabilities – classification, subsequent
measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised
cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL
if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or
loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, Gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

g) Impairment – financial assets
The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit
Losses (ECLs) on the financial assets held. Due to the shortterm nature of the financial assets held by the Company, the
allowances are measured using a lifetime ECL model.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment, that
includes forward looking information.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the group is exposed
to credit risk.
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Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
cash shortfalls.
On completing the assessment using the simple ECL model,
the Company does not have any indication of a material
impairment loss. The fair values are therefore equal to the
book value initially recognised.
Credit-impaired financial assets
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset is credit
impaired. An individual receivable position or group of
positions is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if,
and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more loss events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and prior to the balance sheet date
(‘a loss event’) and that loss event or events has had an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
The amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. An allowance for impairment is
reversed only when the credit quality has improved such that
there is reasonable assurance of timely collection of the cash
flows in accordance with the original contractual terms of
the agreement.

h) Taxation
Income tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which
case the income tax is recognised in equity. For items initially
recognised in equity and subsequently recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, the related income tax
initially recognised in equity is also subsequently recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the period and includes any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years. Current tax is calculated using
tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
sheet date.
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability
method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax-base. The principal temporary
differences arise from the depreciation of property, plant
and equipment and other short term temporary differences.
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the amount
at which it is expected to recover or settle the carrying amount
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of assets and liabilities on the balance sheet, using tax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary
differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. In addition, deferred tax is
not recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on the
initial recognition of goodwill.
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised.
Deferred tax liability is recognised on taxable temporary
differences arising on un-remitted earnings of subsidiaries
except to the extent that it is probable that such temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Information as to the calculation of income tax on the profit or
loss and deferred tax for the periods presented is included in
Notes 9 and 10.

i) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be reliably measured. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income during
the financial period in which they are incurred. Depreciation on
assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amounts. These are included in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

j) Provision for restoration costs
Provision has been made for the cost of restoring the current
leased property to its original condition at the end of the lease
period. This is assessed at each balance sheet date.

k) Performance obligations and revenue
recognition policies
Revenue primarily consists of management fees, commission
on dealing and net margin derived from placing client funds
on deposit. Revenue is recognised on an accrued basis as the
Company’s performance obligations with customers have been
met in accordance with IFRS 15.
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in the contract with a customer. The Company recognises
revenue when it meets its obligations for the services it
transfers to a customer.
Investment management fees, fees from support
services and miscellaneous income:
Invoices for these services are issued on a monthly or quarterly
basis and are usually payable within 30 days.
Revenue is recognised over time as the services are provided
by the Company. These performance obligations within the
customer contracts are ongoing and continuous until the
individual contract is terminated.
The revenue is recognised in accordance with the contract
terms. The performance obligations are deemed to
be met over time by the Company, and the rights to
consideration under the contract are then transferred to the
Company periodically.

Right-of-use asset

Between commencement
date and end of lease

Commission on trade placement and foreign
exchange transaction fees:

Leasehold improvements

Between purchase date
and end of lease

Furniture, fittings and equipment

Four years

The commission due to the Company upon completion of
each transaction is recognised as revenue at the point in time
when each transaction is settled. The consideration under
the contract is transferred to the Company when recognised
as revenue.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. Assets that
are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An asset’s carrying
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l) Interest income and expense
Interest income and expense includes interest income and
expense on the Company’s financial instruments owned, shortterm and long-term borrowings. These are recorded using
the effective interest rates of the financial assets or financial
liabilities to which they relate.

m) Retirement benefit costs
The Company has only defined contribution pension plans.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension
plans are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as incurred.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated on a straightline method from the commencement date to the end of the
lease term. The right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses and adjusted for remeasurements of the
lease liability.
The Company presents the right-of-use asset in the balance
sheet in the same line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.
The Company’s leases principally relate to properties and are
accordingly included in property, plant and equipment in the
balance sheet.

Dividends are recognised in retained earnings when
paid. Dividend income is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income on a paid basis.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value
of the unpaid lease payments at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that
rate cannot readily be determined, the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate.

o) Investment in subsidiary

q) Employee Benefits

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.
The Company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.

Short-term employee benefits

n) Dividends

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are accounted for at
cost less impairment, in accordance with IAS 27 ‘Separate
Financial Statements’, in these Financial Statements.

p) Leases
As a lessor
The Company is not a party to any contracts in which it is a
lessor of assets as at balance sheet date.
As a lessee
At inception of the contract, the Company assesses whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the
right to control the use of the asset, the Company uses the
definition of a lease in IFRS 16.
The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability, for any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset less any
incentives received.
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Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid if the Company has a resent legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.
Group share-based payment arrangements
As a receiving entity, the Company makes Conditional Share
Awards to its employees which are subsequently settled by its
parent, Waverton Investment Management Group Limited.
The grant-date fair value of these equity-settled share-based
payment arrangements are generally recognised as expenses,
with a corresponding recharge to the parent over the vesting
period of the awards. The amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related
service and non-market performance conditions are expected
to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised is based
on the numbers of awards that meet the related service and
non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.
Equity settled share-based payment awards recognised as
expenses in the Company will have a corresponding increase in
equity for the parent.
The Company has not made awards with nonvesting conditions.
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3. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements in applying accounting policies
In preparing these Financial Statements, management has
made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of the Company’s accounting policies and the
reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively.
In the view of management, the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate of 4% upon recognition of the right-of-use asset
and the subsequent lease obligations represents a significant
source of estimation uncertainty. This presents a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities in the period ended 31 December 2021.
Revenue from contracts with customers:

Total revenue from contracts with customers

4. Revenue
The Company generates revenue primarily from the provision
of investment management services to its customers.
All revenue is generated from continuing operations.
All revenue is recognised on the basis that the Company has
met its performance obligations on a continuous basis in the
case of services, and revenue from individual transactions is
met at the point in time the transaction is completed.
Other sources of revenue include amounts generated from
interest on client margin and placing and unit trust commission
and income derived from the Company’s premises.
The following table provides information about the nature
and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in
contracts with customers, including significant payment terms,
and the related revenue recognition policies:

Year to
31 December 2021
£000

15 months to
31 December 2020
£000

49,568

52,698

Other revenue:		
Property income
Margin on client money
Total other revenue

700

-

12

608

712

608

Year to
31 December 2021
£000

15 months to
31 December 2020
£000

47,045

49,459

In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers
is disaggregated by services provided by the Company and the
timing of revenue recognition:
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:

Fees from investment management services
Foreign exchange transaction fees

1,590

2,015

Fees from support services

763

963

Commission on trade placement

160

249

10

12

49,568

52,698

Miscellaneous income
Total revenue from contracts with customers

The Company does not have any remaining performance
obligations as at 31 December 2021.
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5. Profit before taxation
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after
charging/(crediting) the following:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Year to
31 December 2021
£000

15 months to
31 December 2020
£000

1,866

2,598

Auditor’s remuneration and their associates:		
Audit of these Financial Statements
Audit related regulatory services
Exchange gains/(losses)

52

40

26

24

102

226

Year to
31 December 2021
£000

15 months to
31 December 2020
£000

1,063

1,086

6. Emoluments of Directors
Excluding pension contributions, the aggregate amount of
emoluments of the highest paid Director were £455,556
(2020: £418,845). The Company made pension contributions
to the highest paid director during the period of £10,000
(2020: nil). The highest paid director also received Long Term
Incentive Plan equity payments at a fair value of £55,556 for
the period.

Directors’ emoluments in respect of 6 Directors (2020:5)

The Company contributed £20,000 to money purchase
pension schemes during the period (2020: £4,667) for
two directors.

7. Staff numbers and costs
The average number of persons employed by the Company
(including Directors) during the period, analysed by category,
were as follows:
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Year to
31 December 2021
£000
Fund management

15 months to
31 December 2020
£000

44

45

116

104

160

149

Year to
31 December 2021
£000

15 months to
31 December 2020
£000

Wages and salaries

19,171

20,986

Social security costs

2,750

2,567

Other pension costs

839

1,301

Conditional Share Awards

194

-

22,954

24,854

Year to
31 December 2021
£000

15 months to
31 December 2020
£000

Administration

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:

Other pension costs relate to the Company’s contributions
paid to the defined contribution pension schemes for the
benefit of all employees.
Conditional share awards are fair valued at grant date and
equity settled through the parent company. The awards carry
a non-market vesting condition of continuous service by the
employee for a period of three years from grant date.

8. Other income

Dividend income from subsidiary undertaking

87

-

Interest income from term deposits

32

5

119

5
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9. Taxation
Current tax

Current tax on profits of the period
Adjustments in respect of previous periods
Total current tax

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Year to
31 December 2021
£000

15 months to
31 December 2020
£000

2,314

1,929

16

7

2,330

1,936

Year to
31 December 2021
£000

15 months to
31 December 2020
£000

21

(131)

Adjustments in respect of previous periods

(29)

-

Effect of tax rate change

(36)

2

Total deferred tax charge/(credit)

(44)

(129)

2,286

1,807

Year to
31 December 2021
£000

15 months to
31 December 2020
£000

11,979

10,207

2,276

1,939

Income tax charge

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Profit before tax multiplied by the UK statutory rate of

corporation tax at 19% (2020: 19%)		
Other permanent differences
Adjustments to current tax in respect of previous periods
Adjustments to deferred tax in respect of previous periods
IFRS 16 transitional adjustment
Effects of change in tax rate
Income tax charge

An increase in the UK corporation tax rate from 19% to 25%
(effective 1 April 2023) was substantively enacted on 24 May
2021. This will increase the Company’s future current tax
charge accordingly. The deferred tax asset at 31 December
2021 has been calculated based on the tax rates (19% and 25%)
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on rates that have been
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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59

71

16

7

(29)

-

-

(212)

(36)

2

2,286

1,807
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10. Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability settled, based on rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
As at 31 December 2021
£000

As at 31 December 2020
£000

The movement for the year on the deferred tax account is as follows:
At the beginning of the year

108

(21)

Benefit/(charge) to income for the year

(21)

131

Prior year adjustments

29

-

Effect of change in tax rate

36

(2)

152

108

As at balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets are attributable to the following items:		
Accelerated tax depreciation on fixed assets

(3)

(60)

151

165

4

3

152

108

As at 31 December 2021
£000

As at 31 December 2020
£000

4,926

8,890

As at 31 December 2021
£000

As at 31 December 2020
£000

Trade receivables

1,611

893

Other receivables

303

167

-

1,137

11,659

9,832

13,573

12,029

IFRS 16 transitional adjustment
Pension accrual
As at balance sheet date

11. Cash at bank and in hand
Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary differences
using a tax rate of 19% and 25% (2020: 19%)

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The book value of cash approximates their
fair value.

12. Trade and other receivables

Rent deposit
Accrued income
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13. Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use
Asset

Leasehold
Improvements

Fixtures, fittings
& equipment

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

Cost				
At 31 December 2020

8,200

1,266

Reclassification adjustment

-

(59)

59

-

Additions

-

22

58

80

-

-

(45)

(45)

8,200

1,229

861

10,290

Write-offs
At 31 December 2021

789

10,255

Accumulated depreciation				
At 31 December 2020

(1,864)

(539)

(286)

(2,689)

Charge for the year

(1,503)

(151)

(212)

(1,866)

Write-offs
At 31 December 2021

-

-

45

45

(3,367)

(690)

(453)

(4,510)

Net book value				
At 31 December 2020

6,336

727

503

7,566

At 31 December 2021

4,833

539

408

5,780

Full details of the right-of-use asset recognition are contained in
note 21.

14. Other assets
As at 31 December 2021
£000

As at 31 December 2020
£000

1,482

995

As at 31 December 2021
£000

As at 31 December 2020
£000

5,842

5,905

289

232

Trade payables

748

583

Other payables

1,363

730

769

648

9,011

8,098

Prepayments

15. Trade and other payables

Staff cost liabilities
Other liabilities

Accruals
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16. Issued share capital
As at 31 December 2021
£000

As at 31 December 2020
£000

Ordinary shares of £1 each

21,322

21,322

Ordinary “1” shares of £1 each

222

222

Ordinary “2” shares of £1 each

1,000

1,000

Ordinary “3” shares of £1 each

100

100

22,644

22,644

As at 31 December 2021
£000

As at 31 December 2020
£000

23

23

All share classes rank equally in voting rights and dividend
distributions. No dividends have been proposed or declared
since the period end up to the date of authorisation of these
Financial Statements.

17. Capital adequacy
The Company’s lead regulator, the Financial Conduct Authority
(FCA), sets and monitors capital requirements for the
Company. In implementing current capital requirements the
FCA requires the Company to have capital in excess of its
capital requirements.
The Company’s regulatory capital requirement is known as
Tier 1 Capital and comprises, share capital, share premium,
non-cumulative preference shares and audited reserves,
adjusted to reflect differences in regulatory treatments
for certain groups of assets. The regulatory capital of the
Company is detailed below:

Issued share capital
Share premium account

313

313

Retained earnings

19,388

17,346

Core tier 1 capital

19,724

17,682

-

-

19,724

17,682

-

-

19,724

17,682

Deductions from tier 1
Core tier 1 capital
Deductions from total capital liquid assets
Total capital after deductions
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The capital balances and capital requirements are monitored
on an ongoing basis by the Company’s finance department.
The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so
as to provide returns to the shareholders and sustain future
development of the business. The Board of Directors monitor
the capital base and the return of capital to investors.
The Company has maintained sufficient capital to cover
regulatory requirements throughout the period.

18. Provision for restoration costs
Provision has been made for the cost of restoring the current
leased property to its original condition at the end of the lease
period, expected to be £167k. This is assessed at each balance
sheet date.

19. Measurement and fair value of financial
instruments
The following table details the financial assets and liabilities
held by the Company. With the exception of the Rent deposit,
these assets are short term in nature. All of the following assets
have an insignificant financing component. Detail of the rightof-use assets are disclosed separately in note 21. These assets
are held at book cost, and are materially the same as their
fair value.
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Accrued income

As at 31 December 2021
£000

As at 31 December 2020
£000

4,926

8,890

1,915

1,060

11,658

9,832

Loan to ultimate parent

3,000

-

Intercompany receivables

5,043

4,324

Rent deposit

1,160

1,137

27,702

25,243

Financial liabilities

As at 31 December 2021
£000

As at 31 December 2020
£000

Staff cost liabilities

5,842

5,905

Other liabilities

289

232

Trade payables

748

583

Other payables

1,363

730

769

648

9,011

8,098

Accruals
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20. Financial instruments risk position

Risk management oversight

Overview

Risk management oversight is performed at several levels
in the organisation. Key responsibilities lie with the following
management bodies and committees.

The Company’s risk management process is designed to
ensure that there are sufficient controls to measure, monitor
and control risks in accordance with a control framework
and in consideration of industry best practices. The primary
responsibility for risk management lies with Waverton’s senior
business line managers. They are held accountable for all
risks associated with their businesses, including counterparty
risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk and
reputational risk.
Risk management principles
The prudent taking of risk is fundamental to the business
of Waverton. The primary objectives of risk management
are to protect the financial strength and the reputation of
Waverton, while looking to ensure that capital is well deployed
to maximise income and shareholder value. Waverton’s risk
management framework is based on the following principles,
which apply universally across all risk types.
-	Protection of financial strength: Waverton manages risk in
order to limit the impact of potentially adverse events on
Waverton’s capital and income. Waverton’s risk appetite
is regularly reviewed by the Board in line with its strategic
objectives, risk profile and capital resources.
-	Protection of reputation: The value of Waverton’s franchise
depends on its reputation. Protecting a strong reputation
is both fundamental and an overriding concern for all
staff members.
-	Risk transparency: Risk transparency is essential so that risks
are well understood by senior management and members
of the Waverton Board of Directors and can be balanced
against business goals.
-	Management accountability: Waverton is organised into
segments that own the comprehensive risks assumed
through their operations. Management of each segment is
responsible for the ongoing management of their respective
risk exposures and earning a sufficient long-term return for
the risks taken.
-	Independent oversight: Risk management is a structured
process to identify, measure, monitor and report risk.
The risk management and legal and compliance functions
operate independently of the front office to ensure
the integrity of Waverton’s control processes. The risk
management functions are responsible for implementing
all relevant risk policies, developing tools to assist senior
management to determine risk appetite and assessing the
overall risk profile of Waverton.

Risk management oversight at the Waverton management
level as at 31 December 2021
-	The Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing and
evaluating the firm’s risks, these include credit, market,
business, liquidity, systems and concentration risks.
The committee meets once a month. The Finance
department is responsible for the monitoring and reporting
of capital adequacy.
-	Waverton Management Committee is responsible for
implementing the strategy and actively managing its
portfolio of businesses and its risk profile with the objective
of balancing risk and return appropriately in the prevailing
market conditions.
-	The Waverton Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
is a sub-committee of the Board which meets quarterly
and is the escalation point for the Waverton Risk function.
The committee retains oversight of both the internal and
external audit functions. The Committee is comprised of
two Non-Executive Directors.

a) Market risk
Overview
Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in
interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices,
commodity prices and other relevant market parameters, such
as market volatilities.
The Company is exposed to market risk with regards to
foreign currency and interest rates. It is also significantly
exposed to investment markets including equities, bonds and
commodities. These form
the majority of the clients’ investments, on which management
fees are charged as a percentage of their value.
Foreign currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign currency rates. The Company may enter
into transactions denominated in currencies other than its
functional currency. Consequently, the Company is exposed
to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative to
other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an
adverse effect on the value of that portion of the Company’s
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b) Concentration risk

assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than GBP.
Management do not actively manage this risk.

Since the Company does not take proprietary positions and
has minimal levels of credit exposure, it is not exposed to
potential sources of concentration risk such as sector, industry,
country or group exposure. No client is responsible for more
than 2% of revenue.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had foreign currency
exposure of USD2,129k in net assets. A change of 50 basis
points in the USD exchange rate at the balance sheet date
would have increased/(decreased) profit by £7,903/(£7,824)
(2020: £10,179/(£10,078)).

c) Credit risk

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had foreign currency
exposure of EUR955k in net assets. A change of 50 basis points
in the EUR exchange rate at the balance sheet date would have
increased/(decreased) profit by £4,032/(£3,992) (2020: £5,267/
(£5,215)).

Overview

Interest rate risk

The Company does not undertake lending activity as part
of its business. Its debtors typically consist of amounts which
arise incidentally to its business such as management fee
income receivable. The Company has a mandate to debit
fees directly from the client portfolio in approximately 80%
of cases. The Company regularly assesses the liquidity of
its assets in order to assess its ability to comply with capital
adequacy requirements.

The Company is subject to interest rate risk based on the
variable interest earned/charged on the bank balances.
The exposure of this balance is £7.9 million (2020: £8.9 million).
The Company does not actively manage this risk.
A change of 50 basis points in interest rates in the year to
31 December 2021 would have increased/decreased profit by
£39,632 (2020: £44,448).

Trade and other receivables
Intercompany receivables

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument
will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancement:
As at 31 December 2021
£000

As at 31 December 2020
£000

13,572

12,029

5,043

4,324

18,616

16,353

As at 31 December 2021
£000

As at 31 December 2020
£000

18,616

16,353

Distribution of loans and receivables by credit quality:

Neither past due nor impaired
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Trade and other receivables neither past due nor impaired
consist of trade receivables and accruals from funds which are
managed by the Company. These funds do not themselves have
credit ratings however historically and presently there are no
past due amounts to the Company.

d) Liquidity risk
Overview
The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities.
The Company’s own cash balances are held in call accounts
or short-term deposit accounts. All client assets are clearly
segregated from the Company’s assets.
The Company regularly reviews the liquidity of its assets in
order to assess its ability to comply with regulatory capital
adequacy requirements.
The following table sets out details on the remaining
contractual maturity of all financial liabilities:
As at 31 December 2021
£000
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities
Total financial liabilities
As at 31 December 2020
£000
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities
Total financial liabilities

On
Demand

Less than
one year

1-3
years

3-5
years

>5
years

Total

9,011

-

-

-

-

9,011

-

1,691

3,590

469

-

5,750

9,011

1,691

3,590

469

-

14,761

On
Demand

Less than
one year

1-3
years

3-5
years

>5
years

Total

8,098

-

-

-

-

8,098

-

1,625

5,281

469

-

7,375

8,098

1,625

5,281

469

-

15,473
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21. Leases
The following table sets forth the movements in the right-ofuse asset:
		£000
Carrying value of right-of-use asset as at 1 January 2021

6,336

Depreciation charged during period		
Carrying value of right-of-use asset 31 December 2021

(1,503)
4,833

The following table sets forth the lease liabilities recognised in
respect of the right-of-use asset:
		£000
Carrying value of lease payments as at 1 January 2021

7,375

Financing component

271

Lease payments made during the period		
Carrying value of lease payments 31 December 2021

22. Subsidiary undertakings
During the year, the Company’s 100% owned subsidiary,
Parrish Blake Limited, paid a pre-liquidation dividend of £87k.
The Company subsequently appointed liquidators to wind
up Parrish Blake Limited. The Company has determined
an impairment of £139k is appropriate in order to fully
derecognise the investment from the Company’s statement of
financial position.

23. Related party transactions
The Company enters into transactions with related parties in
the ordinary course of business. These transactions are made
for the purpose of maintaining liquidity across the Waverton
Investment Management Group.
Following the office reconfiguration, the Company now
receives a contribution from Timothy James & Partners Limited
in relation to its premises. Timothy James & Partners is also a
100% owned subsidiary of Waverton Investment Management
Group Limited.
During the year the Company performed support functions to
ICM for Utilico Limited and Utilico Emerging Markets Trust Plc.
ICM is the “in house” investment manager for the UIL group
that includes Somers, our 62.5% shareholders.
The Company has placed £3,000k cash on deposit with its’
ultimate parent, Somers Limited. The Company has recognised
the asset as a Loan to Ultimate Parent in its statement of
financial position. The terms of this loan include an interest rate
54

(1,896)
5,750

of 4.0% and the ability for the Company to call back the loan
balance after an 8 day notice period. The Company recognised
£10k of interest income from this loan as at 31 December 21.
The Company shares a common director, A A Percy with
Independent Investment Management Initiative Limited, and
received services during the period for a total value of £3,950.
The following table provides information on revenue from
related parties:
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As at 31 December 2021
£000

As at 31 December 2020
£000

Property revenue

700

-

Support services

352

338

Interest income

10

-

1,062

338

Total revenue from related parties

Related party assets and liabilities
Waverton has related party assets by way of intercompany
loans to group companies of £5,043k (2020: £4,324k)
and liabilities to group companies of nil (2020: £86k).
Accrued income of £79k was due from ICM as at period end
in the normal course of business. Accrued income of £78k was
due from Timothy James & Partners as at 31 December 2021.
As at 31 December 21, the Company has a loan of £3,000k
due from its ultimate parent, Somers Limited with a further
£!0k of interest income from this balance recognised in its
other receivable balance.

The smallest and largest group in which the results of the
Company are consolidated is that headed by Waverton
Investment Management Group Limited,16 Babmaes Street,
London, SW1Y 6AH. Copies of the group financial statements
are available to the public at 16 Babmaes Street, London,
SW1Y 6AH. Somers Limited, the intermediate parent, does
not consolidate the results of the Company by virtue of being
an investment entity in accordance with IFRSs. The financial
statements of both the intermediate parent and the ultimate
controlling party are available to the public at 34 Bermudiana
Road, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda.

24. Interest in unconsolidated structured
entities
The Company is the manager and distributor of the
Undertakings in Collective Investment in Transferable
Securities (UCITS) held within Waverton Investment Funds
plc and has been issued one subscriber share. This subscriber
share does not confer any rights to participate in the profits
or dividends of the UCITS, and the board of Waverton
Investment Funds plc maintains the right to terminate the
appointment of the Company. The Company is therefore
not exposed to any variability on its returns as a result of this
interest and is judged to act as an agent rather than having
control under IFRS 10.

25. Parent and ultimate holding company
The Company is a 100% owned subsidiary of Waverton
Investment Management Group Limited which is the ultimate
parent company incorporated in the United Kingdom.
Somers Limited is the intermediate parent, and the ultimate
controlling party is Somers Isles Private Trust Company
Limited, both incorporated in Bermuda.
In accordance with section 400 of the Companies Act 2006,
the Company is exempt from preparing consolidated financial
statements, as the Company is a 100% owned subsidiary of
Waverton Investment Management Group Limited, which
prepares consolidated accounts.
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Active management

FCA

NPS

The management of investments based
on active decision-making rather than
with the objective of replicating the
return of an index.

Financial Conduct Authority.

NPS stands for Net Promoter Score,
a metric used in customer experience
programmes. NPS measures the loyalty
of customers to a company.

Alpha
Excess return over market returns
relative to a market benchmark.

Assets under management
(AUM)
The aggregate value of assets managed
on behalf of clients.

Basis point (bps)
One one-hundredth of a percentage
point (0.01%).

BREEAM
BREEAM is the world’s leading
sustainability assessment method for
master planning projects, infrastructure
and buildings.

CDP
The Carbon Disclosure Project is a
not-for-profit charity that runs the
global disclosure system for investors,
companies, cities, states and regions to
manage their environmental impacts.

Client investment
performance
Client investment performance is
a measure of how investments are
performing relative to a benchmark or
other comparator.

Compensation cost
Total cost of employee benefits.

ESG
Environmental, social and governance.

ESG integration
ESG integration refers to the
incorporation of ESG factors into
investment decision-making with the aim
of delivering better risk-adjusted returns
to our clients.
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ICAAP
Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process.

Investment returns

Pillar 1

The increase in AUM attributable
to investment performance, market
movements and foreign exchange.

The minimum capital requirements in
relation to credit risk, operational risk
and market risk taken by the Group
as principal.

Net income

Pillar 2

A sub-total comprising net operating
revenue, net gains on financial
instruments and other income and share
of profit of associates and joint ventures.

The requirement for companies to assess
the level of additional capital held against
risks not covered in Pillar 1.

Net new assets

This complements Pillar 1 and Pillar
2 with the aim of improving market
discipline by requiring companies to
publish certain details of their risks,
capital and risk management.

New funds from clients less funds
withdrawn by clients. This is also
described as net inflows (when positive)
or net outflows (when negative).
New funds and funds withdrawn are
calculated as at 31 December 2020 on
the basis of actual funding provided
or withdrawn.

Net zero target
A “net zero” target refers to reaching
net zero carbon emissions by a selected
date and refers to balancing the amount
of emitted greenhouse gases with the
equivalent emissions that are either
offset or sequestered.

Net operating revenue
A sub-total consisting of revenue
less cost of sales as defined the
financial statements.

Net operating revenue
margins
Net operating revenue excluding
performance fees, net carried interest
and real estate transaction fees divided
by the relevant average AUM.

Pillar 3

PRA
Prudential Regulation Authority.

PRI
The United Nations-supported
Principles for Responsible Investment
Initiative is an international network
of investment companies working
together to implement the six Principles
for Responsible Investment. Its goal
is to understand the implications of
sustainability and support signatories
to incorporate these issues into their
investment decision making and
ownership practices.

SEI
SEI is a Nasdaq quoted business with
a global wealth platform. It offers a
fully-integrated, single-infrastructure
technology and operational outsourcing
solution that enables organisational
transformation and digitisation of the
wealth management experience.
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SMCR
Senior Managers and Certification
Regime. FCA regulation which aims to
strengthen market integrity by making
senior individuals more accountable for
their conduct and competence.

Sustainalytics
Sustainalytics is a leading ESG research,
ratings and data firm that supports
investors around the world with the
development and implementation of
responsible investment strategies.

Total capital requirement
The requirement to hold the sum
of Pillar 1 and Pillar 2A capital
requirements. Pillar 2A capital
requirements are supplementary
requirements for those risk categories
not captured by Pillar 1, depending on
specific circumstances of a company, as
set out by the PRA.

Total equity
Total assets less total liabilities.

UCITS
Undertakings for the Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities.
The UCITS directive is a regulatory
framework of the European Union that
creates a harmonised regime throughout
Europe for the management and sale of
investment funds.

UK Stewardship Code
A set of principles or guidelines from the
Financial Reporting Council directed at
institutional investors who hold voting
rights in United Kingdom companies.
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Investment insight and commentary
We publish regular and ad hoc commentary on the markets
which are available via email or in print

Why Invest? Podcast
Our award-winning podcast, Why Invest? hosted by Portfolio
Manager, Douglas Barnett is also available via all major platforms
including Apple Podcasts and Spotify and on our website

Subscribe to receive updates online
Stay up to date with our latest news and insights, register to
receive email alerts via www.waverton.co.uk/media-centre/insights

Follow us on LinkedIn
We publish all our news and updates on social media – follow us on
www.linkedin.com/company/waverton-investment-management

Contact us
For further information:
T: +44 (0) 20 7484 7484
E: enquiries@waverton.co.uk
Waverton Investment Management Limited
16 Babmaes Street
London SW1Y 6AH

The views and opinions expressed are the views of Waverton Investment Management Limited and are subject to change based on
market and other conditions. The information provided does not constitute investment advice and it should not be relied on as such.
It should not be considered a solicitation to buy or an offer to sell a security. All material(s) have been obtained from sources believed
to be reliable, but its accuracy is not guaranteed. There is no representation or warranty as to the current accuracy of, nor liability
for, decisions based on such information.
Issued by Waverton Investment Management. Registered Office: 16 Babmaes Street, London, SW1Y 6AH.
Authorised and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England No 2042285.
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